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Brothers, Sheila C

From: Schroeder, Margaret <m.mohr@uky.edu>
Sent: Friday, October 16, 2015 1:10 PM
To: Hippisley, Andrew R; Brothers, Sheila C
Subject: Graduate Certificate: Next Generation Teaching & Learning
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Proposed New Graduate Certificate: Next Generation Teaching & Learning 

  

This is a recommendation that the University Senate approve the establishment of a new Graduate Certificate: 
Next Generation Teaching & Learning, in the Department of Curriculum & Instruction within the College of 
Education. 

 

Please find the revised proposal attached. 

 
Best- 

Margaret 

---------- 
Margaret J. Mohr-Schroeder, PhD | Associate Professor of STEM Education | COE Faculty Council Chair | 
SAPC University Senate Committee Chair | University Senator | Secondary Mathematics Program Co-Chair 
| STEM PLUS Program Co-Chair | Department of STEM Education | University of Kentucky | 
www.margaretmohrschroeder.com 
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Graduate Certificate in Next Generation Teaching & Learning  

I.  Overview  

Next	
  Generation	
  Teaching	
  and	
  Learning,	
  that	
  incorporates	
  21st	
  Century	
  Skills	
  
(collaboration,	
  communication,	
  technology,	
  critical	
  thinking,	
  problem	
  solving	
  and	
  
performances	
  of	
  learning),	
  is	
  a	
  current	
  direction	
  in	
  educational	
  endeavors	
  in	
  a	
  variety	
  of	
  
learning	
  environments	
  from	
  K-­‐12	
  classrooms	
  and	
  teacher	
  professional	
  development	
  to	
  
museums	
  and	
  after-­‐school	
  programs.	
  We	
  have	
  polled	
  interest	
  from	
  many	
  of	
  our	
  
constituents	
  in	
  education	
  and	
  the	
  demand	
  for	
  a	
  Next	
  Generation	
  Certificate	
  is	
  high.	
  	
  
These	
  constituents	
  in	
  Kentucky	
  range	
  from	
  teachers	
  at	
  Department	
  of	
  Defense	
  schools	
  
at	
  Fort	
  Campbell	
  to	
  the	
  Challenger	
  Center	
  in	
  Hazard	
  to	
  the	
  After	
  School	
  Coalition	
  that	
  
provides	
  after	
  school	
  programming	
  in	
  many	
  venues	
  throughout	
  the	
  Commonwealth.	
  
Moreover,	
  no	
  certificate	
  of	
  this	
  kind	
  exists	
  at	
  any	
  of	
  the	
  University	
  of	
  Kentucky	
  
benchmarks,	
  on-­‐site	
  or	
  online.	
  As	
  this	
  Certificate	
  has	
  faculty	
  from	
  three	
  departments	
  in	
  
the	
  College	
  of	
  Education	
  we	
  anticipate,	
  after	
  the	
  first	
  two	
  years	
  of	
  start-­‐up	
  (during	
  
which	
  students	
  might	
  reasonably	
  complete	
  the	
  sequence	
  of	
  coursework)	
  that	
  we	
  would	
  
have	
  10	
  students	
  completing	
  annually.	
  

This	
  Certificate	
  combines	
  required	
  Next	
  Generation	
  Foundations	
  and	
  Assessment	
  
components	
  with	
  Specialty	
  Electives,	
  representative	
  of	
  cutting	
  edge	
  innovative	
  
pedagogy.	
   The certificate comprises 12 hours of graduate coursework as follows: Nine 
(9) credit hours of required course work comprised of three (3) hours of the Next 
Generation Learning Foundations course, three (3) hours of an internship choice, three 
(3) hours of a course on data-driven decision making and a final three (3) chosen from 
specialty course options. These coursework options are elaborated in part II below.  

A	
  key	
  purpose	
  of	
  the	
  Certificate	
  work	
  is	
  a	
  demonstration	
  of	
  research	
  to	
  practice	
  
knowledge	
  and	
  skills,	
  through	
  implementation	
  and	
  assessment	
  of	
  Next	
  Generation	
  
pedagogy	
  in	
  a	
  field	
  setting.	
  We	
  believe	
  this	
  certificate	
  will	
  enhance	
  educator	
  preparation	
  
and	
  be	
  critical	
  to	
  clinical	
  professional	
  development	
  for	
  practicing	
  teachers,	
  who	
  need	
  to	
  
demonstrate	
  competencies	
  in	
  21st	
  century	
  innovative	
  practices	
  for	
  Next	
  Generation	
  
Teaching	
  and	
  Learning.	
  	
  	
  

II. Certificate Course Content and Student Learning Outcomes 

 

Course Course 
Number 

Content Semester 
Offered 

Required Foundations of NGT&G 
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(Foundations + 1 Internship Choice + 1 Data Driven Decision Making ) 

 
Next Generation 
Learning 
Foundations 
 
 
L. Henry 

EDC 575 This special topics course is designed to engage 
students in critical reading, thinking, writing, and 
discussion about central issues, theoretical 
perspectives, and innovative pedagogy related to 
teaching next generation learners. Class 
participants will read, write about, and discuss 
content related to expanded definitions of literacy 
as well as emerging instructional models related 
to teaching 21st century learners and the critical 
attributes of next generation learning. 

 
Fall 

Teaching Internship 
TBA 
 
OR 
 
 
 
 
 
________________ 
Internship in 
Instructional Systems 
Design 
TBA 
 

EDC 501 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________ 
EDC 750 

Supervised practice teaching under competent 
leadership. Observation, instruction, independent 
study which parallels field experience, and 
conferences with supervising instructor included. 
This course is designed primarily for students in 
Allied Health Professions, Education, Library and 
Information Science, Home Economics, and 
Social Work. May be repeated to a maximum of 
12 hours. 
___________________________________ 
Students will apply their knowledge of 
instructional systems design and in a real-life 
setting. The NGT & L work setting will be 
selected based on the professional goals of each 
student and student work will be supervised and 
reviewed by the internship coordinator. May be 
repeated to a maximum of nine credits. 
 

Any 

Data Drive-Decision Making   
Required – ONE Course - 3 Hours 

Assessment and 
Accountability in P-
12 Education 
 

EDC 520 
 

The purpose of the course is to investigate and 
document teaching effectiveness. Candidates 
design an integrated unit of study, pre and post 
test student learning, analyze learning gains 
drawing on formative and summative measures, 
and make modifications and accommodations 
based on the results 
 

Spring 

Specialty Courses  
Required: Select ONE 3-Hour Course 

 
Digital Game-based 
Learning & 
Instruction 

EDC 543 
 
J. Mazur 

This course will introduce the application of 
digital game-based learning delivered via 
computer-based educational games in a variety 
of instructional contexts. 

 
 
Spring 
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Social Media Design 
of Interactive 
Systems 

EDC 709 
J. Mazur 

Activity theory, social networking theory, 
computer-supported collaborative work (CSCW) 
and computer-supported collaborative learning 
(CSCL), social learning models and networked 
immersive environments, the course content will 
explore the research topics related to 
communities of practice and other on-line 
learning communities 

 
Bi-annual 
Fall 

 
Design Thinking in 
Education  
 

 
EDL 571 
J. Nash 

 
Interdisciplinary perspectives on the use of 
design for solving the world’s challenges 

 
Fall 

Designing Project-
Based Environments 
in STEM Education 

SEM 704 
J. Wilhelm 

SEM 704 will give students the opportunity to 
explore STEM contents, technologies, 
instructional strategies, and assessments 
necessary in designing and developing a 
research-based, interdisciplinary, project-
enhanced environment. In SEM 704 students will 
experience, evaluate, and design 
interdisciplinary, project-enhanced environments 
within STEM classrooms. 
 

Fall 

Advance Content 
Specialty Elective 

 Prior Approval of Certificate Faculty Coordinator 
Required 

 

 
    

Spring 
 

III. Next Generation Learning & Teaching Student Learning Outcomes for Certificate Participants 

 

Student Learning Outcomes Evaluation/Assessment  

To demonstrate principles of Next 
Generation Learning in the design 
of field-based internship projects  

1. Completion of coursework EDC 575, 520 and Elective. 

2. Evaluation of internship project design & translation of Next Generation                                        
Learning demonstrated in student work products resulting from instruction.   
  

Generate assessments in classroom 
demonstration projects that 
evaluate and measure next 
generation critical attributes of 
student learning. 

1. Completion of coursework EDC 520 and assessment components of elective                                  
coursework. 

2. Certificate candidates’ rubrics and measures for assessments                                                
will (a) demonstrate knowledge of various methods of evaluating critical                      
attributes of next generation learning and, (b) demonstrate the use of                                
assessments for data driven instructional decision  making                                                       
(teaching correctives or pedagogical   modifications e.g.) 
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IV.  Faculty of Record and Program Management 
 
Dr. Joan Mazur will serve as the Certificate Director.  Dr. Mazur is professor of Curriculum & Instruction 
and has experience with Graduate Certificate programs, she has also served as a Director of Graduate 
Studies for the department. She participates as associated faculty in two other Graduate Certificates:  
Human Technology Interaction and the Distance Learning Graduate Certificates.  
 
The Core Faculty will be Dr. Joan Mazur, Dr. Laurie Henry and Dr. Margaret Rintamaa in Curriculum & 
Instruction. The Certificate will be housed in the department of Curriculum & Instruction in the College 
of Education, Instructional Systems Design program. Associated faculty are Dr.Jennifer Wilhelm, the 
department chair and associate professor in the STEM Department Dr. John Nash in Educational 
Leadership Studies both in the College of Education.  All associates are members of the Graduate 
Faculty. The Associated faculty are enthusiastic about participation in this Certificate as it will provide 
students in their graduate programs in leadership and STEM with a focused certificate in which to 
embed their courses that include next generation content.  In the case of Dr. Wilhelm, the project based 
learning approach targets the Next Generation Science Standards and Common Core in Mathematics 
pedagogies. Dr. Nash teaches Design Thinking as part of the Educational Leadership graduate and 
doctoral programs.  This certificate leverages expertise and availability of content to an enlarged pool of 
students in education and other areas that may wish to be current on innovative pedagogy, without any 
additional resources needed for any of the programs involved.   
 
Each year (after all course offerings) the Certificate Director will, as part of systematic program 
management, conduct a program faculty meeting that will include updating faculty on any issues or 
changes regarding the program. This meeting will also serve as an assessment/program evaluation 
meeting (see section VI below).  As this Certificate involves graduate faculty from several departments, 
should a faculty member become ineligible to participate (for example by leaving the university) the 
Certificate Director will convene a meeting of the graduate faculty of record and elect a replacement 
member who is a member of the graduate faculty.  
 
V.  Certificate Completion 
 
As per the Graduate School Certificate Guidelines, students must maintain a 3.0 grade in all certificate 
courses to successfully complete the required coursework and be awarded the Certificate.   
 
VI. Program Assessment Plan 
 

Program Outcomes Evaluation/Assessment  

Certificate Program Required Courses offered 
annually to allow access to courses and efficient time 
frames for completion 

1. Course offerings documented in MyUK online catalogue 

    

After Certificate Years One & Two/Start Up* - 10 
Students Annually complete the Certificate 
Requirements 

1. Number of students completing Certificate Program 

2. Consideration of school or district cohorts for recruiting and                 
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* Faculty believe two years would be sufficient time 
for the beginning cohort to work through coursework 

 

stepping through coursework as a group/recruitment strategy 

3. After year one/conduct annual Certificate Graduate meeting                        
to distribute certificates 

Quality Assurance of Course Content and Needed 
Modifications to Coursework options 

1. At annual Program Faculty meeting, discussion of quality of                    
student products and learning outcomes projects submitted. 

2. Contacts with stakeholders/constitutents (school personnel)                        
to  assure program design continues to be valued/needed. 

2. Minutes of annual meeting will reflect program coursework                           
needs and any program modifications  

 









Snippet from the Curriculum & Instruction Department Meeting minute 02/03/15 

 

Action Items 
 
Next Generation Teaching and Learning Certificate-Joan Mazur 
 
Educators are interested in 21st Century Skills, such as project-based learning, digital gaming, design 
thinking, etc.  The Next Generation Teaching and Learning Certificate will enhance educator 
preparation and be critical to clinical professional development for practicing teachers who need to 
demonstrate competencies in 21st century innovative practices for Next Generation Teaching and 
Learning.  A variety of courses can apply toward a degree or be taken as professional development.  The 
certificate would be housed in our department.   
 
Linda Levstik moved to pass the Next Generation Teaching and Learning Certificate.  Doug Smith 
seconded it.  Motion passed. 
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Subject: Re:	
  Invita+on	
  to	
  Par+cipate	
  as	
  Next	
  Genera+on	
  Teaching	
  &	
  Learning	
  Cer+ficate	
  Faculty
Date: Friday,	
  September	
  11,	
  2015	
  at	
  9:23:29	
  AM	
  Eastern	
  Daylight	
  Time
From: Nash,	
  John
To: Mazur,	
  Joan

Dear	
  Joan,

I	
  would	
  be	
  pleased	
  to	
  par+cipate	
  in	
  the	
  cer+ficate	
  and	
  have	
  my	
  course	
  included	
  in	
  it.	
  

Thank	
  you,
—>john	
  

—	
  
John Nash, PhD  |  Univ of Kentucky  |  Assoc Professor  |  Dir of Graduate Studies  |  +1.859.257.7845  |  
johnnash.flavors.me

From:	
  <Mazur>,	
  Joan	
  Mazur	
  <jmazur@uky.edu>
Date:	
  Wednesday,	
  December	
  17,	
  2014	
  at	
  7:07	
  PM
To:	
  "Nash,	
  John"	
  <john.nash@uky.edu>
Cc:	
  "Henry,	
  Laurie	
  A"	
  <LaurieHenry@uky.edu>
Subject:	
  Invita+on	
  to	
  Par+cipate	
  as	
  Next	
  Genera+on	
  Teaching	
  &	
  Learning	
  Cer+ficate	
  Faculty

Dear	
  John,	
  
	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  Laurie	
  Henry	
  and	
  myself,	
  in	
  Curriculum	
  and	
  Instruc+on,	
  are	
  developing	
  an	
  Undergraduate/Graduate	
  Cer+ficate	
  in	
  
Next	
  Genera+on	
  Teaching	
  and	
  Learning.	
  As	
  you	
  may	
  be	
  aware,	
  an	
  emphasis	
  on	
  Next	
  Genera+on	
  Teaching	
  and	
  
Learning,	
  that	
  incorporates	
  21st	
  Century	
  Skills	
  (collabora+on,	
  communica+on,	
  technology,	
  cri+cal	
  thinking	
  and	
  
performances	
  of	
  learning)	
  is	
  the	
  current	
  direc+on	
  in	
  educa+onal	
  endeavors	
  in	
  a	
  variety	
  of	
  learning	
  environments	
  
from	
  K-­‐12	
  classrooms	
  to	
  museums	
  and	
  aeer	
  school	
  programs.	
  We	
  have	
  polled	
  interest	
  from	
  many	
  of	
  our	
  consituents	
  
in	
  educa+on	
  and	
  the	
  demand	
  for	
  a	
  Next	
  Genera+on	
  Cer+ficate	
  is	
  high.	
  	
  

We	
  invite	
  you	
  to	
  par+cipate	
  as	
  Cer+fcate	
  Program	
  faculty	
  and	
  to	
  have	
  your	
  course	
  listed	
  as	
  part	
  of	
  the	
  Cer+ficate	
  
Work.	
  Afached	
  is	
  the	
  proposed	
  overall	
  descrip+on	
  of	
  the	
  Cer+ficate,	
  showing	
  required	
  founda+onal	
  and	
  assessment
components	
  and	
  the	
  NGL	
  speciality	
  	
  elec+ves,	
  of	
  which	
  a	
  course	
  you	
  teach	
  is	
  included	
  in	
  this	
  drae.	
  

	
  Please	
  let	
  us	
  know	
  if	
  you	
  are	
  interested	
  and	
  willing	
  to	
  have	
  your	
  course	
  included	
  in	
  our	
  cer+ficate,	
  designed	
  with	
  
commensurate	
  coursework	
  at	
  both	
  the	
  undergraduate	
  and	
  graduate	
  levels.	
  The	
  dual	
  levels,	
  unusual	
  in	
  Cer+ficates,	
  is	
  
inten+onal.	
  We	
  believe	
  this	
  cer+ficate	
  will	
  enhance	
  the	
  marketability	
  of	
  students	
  in	
  ini+al	
  educator	
  prepara+on	
  to	
  
work	
  in	
  schools	
  of	
  innova+on	
  and	
  be	
  cri+cal	
  to	
  ongoing	
  professional	
  development	
  for	
  prac+cing	
  teachers,	
  who	
  need	
  
to	
  be	
  current	
  in	
  innova+ve	
  teaching	
  prac+ce	
  and	
  demonstrate	
  compentencies	
  in	
  21st	
  century	
  teaching	
  and	
  learning.	
  	
  

If	
  you	
  wish	
  to	
  par+cipate	
  we	
  will	
  need	
  a	
  current	
  CV	
  and	
  your	
  most	
  recent	
  course	
  syllabus,	
  that	
  you	
  can	
  just	
  afach	
  to	
  
Joan	
  via	
  email.	
  	
  Please	
  provide	
  these	
  materials	
  by	
  January	
  15,	
  2015	
  to	
  be	
  included	
  in	
  our	
  proposal	
  submission	
  
documents.

Looking	
  forward	
  to	
  our	
  collabora+on,	
  Best,	
  Joan	
  and	
  Laurie

http://flavors.me/johnnash
mailto:jmazur@uky.edu
mailto:john.nash@uky.edu
mailto:LaurieHenry@uky.edu
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Subject: Re:	
  Invita+on	
  to	
  Par+cipate	
  as	
  a	
  member	
  of	
  the	
  Next	
  Genera+on	
  Teaching	
  and	
  Learning	
  Cer+ficate
Faculty

Date: Wednesday,	
  December	
  17,	
  2014	
  at	
  6:44:22	
  PM	
  Eastern	
  Standard	
  Time
From: Mazur,	
  Joan
To: Rintamaa,	
  Margaret	
  F

You're	
  welcome!	
  	
  Laurie	
  and	
  I	
  will	
  be	
  here	
  at	
  Fort	
  Campbell	
  and	
  Chris+an	
  Co	
  Schools	
  all	
  day	
  tomorrow	
  —	
  so	
  I	
  may	
  
miss	
  you,	
  may	
  be	
  in	
  on	
  Monday	
  -­‐-­‐	
  (Hope	
  not	
  to	
  be:)

Happy	
  Holidays	
  and	
  great	
  break	
  back	
  at	
  ya	
  —	
  you've	
  certainly	
  earned	
  it!	
  Joan

From:	
  <Rintamaa>,	
  Margaret	
  F	
  <mfrint00@uky.edu>
Date:	
  Wednesday,	
  December	
  17,	
  2014	
  6:30	
  PM
To:	
  Joan	
  Mazur	
  <jmazur@uky.edu>
Subject:	
  RE:	
  Invita+on	
  to	
  Par+cipate	
  as	
  a	
  member	
  of	
  the	
  Next	
  Genera+on	
  Teaching	
  and	
  Learning	
  Cer+ficate	
  
Faculty

Hi Joan,

Thank you so much for inviting me to be a part of this!  I would be pleased to be a Certificate Faculty member, and 
look forward to having conversations with you and others about how the courses would fit together.

In Laurie's email she talked about the EDC 520 class having different sections for different levels (elementary, high 
school, etc.) and I think that would be a good idea.  

I will be around tomorrow in the middle of the day if you will be there; otherwise, I hope that you have a wonderful 
holiday break!

Take care,

Margaret

Margaret Rintamaa, Ed.D.
Clinical Assistant Professor
Chair, Middle School Teacher Education Program
Director, Bluegrass Writing Project
309 Dickey Hall, College of Education
University of Kentucky
Lexington, Kentucky 40506-0017
859.257.9324 (office)
859.257.1602 (fax)
margaret.rintamaa@uky.edu

From: Mazur, Joan
Sent: Wednesday, December 17, 2014 6:11 PM
To: Rintamaa, Margaret F
Subject: Invitation to Participate as a member of the Next Generation Teaching and Learning Certificate Faculty

Hi Margaret, 

     I know Laurie emailed you earlier about a minor course change to your Assessment Course, that we 

mailto:mfrint00@uky.edu
mailto:jmazur@uky.edu
mailto:margaret.rintamaa@uky.edu
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think would be an excellent anchoring course for this NXT Gen T&L Certificate.  I'm sending along 
here the invitation to participate as a Certificate Faculty member that I am sending to other colleagues 
whose courses are listed as part of the certificate, as we would very much like you to do that.

----------------------------------------

     Laurie Henry and myself, in Curriculum and Instruction, are developing an Undergraduate/Graduate 
Certificate in Next Generation Teaching and Learning. As you may be aware, an emphasis on Next 
Generation Teaching and Learning, that incorporates 21st Century Skills (collaboration, 
communication, technology, critical thinking and performances of learning) is the current direction in 
educational endeavors in a variety of learning environments from K-12 classrooms to museums and 
after school programs. We have polled interest from many of our consituents in education and the 
demand for a Next Generation Certificate is high.  

We invite you to participate as Certifcate Program faculty and to have your course listed as part of the 
Certificate Work. Attached is the proposed overall description of the Certificate, showing required 
foundational and assessment components and the NGL speciality  electives, of which a course you 
teach is included in this draft. 

 Please let us know if you are interested and willing to have your course included in our certificate, 
designed with commensurate coursework at both the undergraduate and graduate levels. The dual 
levels, unusual in Certificates, is intentional. We believe this certificate will enhance the marketability 
of students in initial educator preparation to work in schools of innovation and be critical to ongoing 
professional development for practicing teachers, who need to be current in innovative teaching 
practice and demonstrate compentencies in 21st century teaching and learning.  

If you wish to participate we will need a current CV and your most recent course syllabus, that you can 
just attach to Joan via email.  Please provide these materials by January 15, 2015 to be included in our 
proposal submission documents.

Looking forward to our collaboration, Best, Joan and Laurie
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Subject: Re:	
  Invita+on	
  to	
  Next	
  Genera+on	
  Teaching	
  &	
  Learning	
  Cer+ficate	
  Faculty
Date: Wednesday,	
  December	
  17,	
  2014	
  at	
  8:34:11	
  PM	
  Eastern	
  Standard	
  Time
From: Wilhelm,	
  Jennifer
To: Mazur,	
  Joan
CC: Henry,	
  Laurie	
  A

Hi	
  Joan,	
  
Yes.	
  This	
  sounds	
  terrific!	
  Excited	
  about	
  this.
Jennifer

Sent	
  from	
  my	
  iPad

On	
  Dec	
  17,	
  2014,	
  at	
  6:05	
  PM,	
  Mazur,	
  Joan	
  <jmazur@uky.edu>	
  wrote:

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
  ager	
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
  Ahached	
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
  drag.	
  

	
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
  ahach	
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
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